FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
5/9/2019 3:19 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

97180-3

NO. 77007-1-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

WENDELL LONG, an individual,

Appellant,

v.

SNOQUALMIE GAMING COMMISSION, a political subdivision of the Snoqualmie Indian Tribe,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Hunter M. Abell, WSBA #37223 Sean D. Leake, WSBA #52658 WILLIAMS, KASTNER & GIBBS PLLC 601 Union Street, Suite 4100 Seattle, WA 98101-2380

Ph: (206) 628-6600 Fx: (206) 628-6611

Attorneys for Appellant Wendell Long

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Factual Background

1. <u>The Players: The Tribe, the Snoqualmie Gaming</u> Commission, and Mr. Long.

The Tribe is a federally recognized Indian tribe governed by the Snoqualmie Tribal Council (the "Council") and the Snoqualmie Tribal

Constitution. CP 2. The SGC was established by the Council pursuant to the 2002 Snoqualmie Tribe Tribal Gaming Act ("STTGA"). *Id.* The STTGA established the SGC as an "independent governmental subdivision of the Tribe" and "as a political subdivision of the Tribe, [the SGC] possesses all the rights, privileges, and immunities of the Tribe, including, without limitation sovereign immunity from suit absent express consent from the Tribal Council." CP 499. The STTGA does not imbue the SGC with sovereign immunity separate from the Tribe, nor does it empower the SGC to waive sovereign immunity on its own behalf. CP 500.

Mr. Long is an enrolled member of the Choctaw Tribe of Oklahoma. CP 501, 622. He possesses over 30 years of gaming experience, including 10 years as CEO for various tribal gaming and resort operations. CP 622. In May 2015, Mr. Long was hired by the Tribe as CEO of the Snoqualmie Casino located in Snoqualmie, WA. CP 501.

2. The Context: History of Council Control of the SGC.

Despite the nominal statutory independence of the SGC, the Council intervened in the SGC's actions and decisions on multiple occasions in the recent past. This culminated in 2014 when the Council appointed itself to replace the SGC Commissioners. CP 500, 618-20. This entailed Council members being interviewed and fingerprinted by

SGC personnel, with background check results reported to the National Indian Gaming Commission. *Id.* Ultimately, Council members were issued gaming licenses to simultaneously serve as SGC Commissioners. *Id.* SGC employees were routinely informed of licensing actions that the Council desired to occur, and complied accordingly. *Id.* Through these actions, the Council effectively appointed itself as the SGC.

3. <u>Commencement of the Lawsuit and Administrative Action Against Mr. Long.</u>

By October 2015, the relationship between the Tribe and Mr. Long soured, causing Mr. Long and the Tribe to separate. CP 501, 623.

Approximately two months later, the Tribe filed a lawsuit in King County Superior Court alleging that Mr. Long breached fiduciary duties, stole, and was otherwise "unjustly enriched." *Id. See Tribe v. Long*, King County Cause No. 15-2-31112-3 SEA. The lawsuit alleged that Mr. Long purportedly awarded an unauthorized bonus to himself and other employees, and disclosed "confidential information" to unauthorized third parties. *Id.* Mr. Long promptly counterclaimed. *Id.*

Shortly after the Tribe initiated the lawsuit, the SGC initiated a licensing action against Mr. Long by summarily suspending his Snoqualmie gaming license. *Id.* The legality of the suspension was contested by Mr. Long in Snoqualmie Tribal Court. CP 502. The SGC's administrative action was based on the same allegations as the Tribe's

lawsuit, namely, claims regarding an unauthorized bonus and disclosure of purportedly "confidential information." CP 501, 623. Consequently, throughout 2015 and 2016, Mr. Long simultaneously defended two actions alleging the same claims and stemming from the same underlying set of facts: 1) the SGC's administrative action seeking revocation of Mr. Long's gaming license; and 2) the Tribe's lawsuit in King County Superior Court involving claims arising from Mr. Long's service as CEO.

4. Mr. Long Seeks Relief From the SGC Administrative Action in the Snoqualmie Tribal Court.

In February 2016, Mr. Long sought an injunction from the Snoqualmie Tribal Court to halt the SGC administrative action. CP 502. The Snoqualmie Tribal Court ultimately denied Mr. Long's requested injunction. CP 531. Recognizing the appearance of collusion by the Tribal and the SGC, however, the Snoqualmie Tribal Court expressed concern:

But I will tell you that this doesn't smell right. It doesn't pass the smell test to me. It looks to me like this, like they're headhunting. It doesn't sound like SGC independently, outside of the Tribe, all of a sudden found out that, that [sic] a licensing issue. It looks to me like...I don't think I have to tell you what it looks like.

Id.

Shortly thereafter, the SGC revoked Mr. Long's gaming license, based upon a finding that Mr. Long inappropriately awarded himself and others a bonus and improperly passed on "confidential information" to

outside third parties—the same allegations as those in the Tribe's lawsuit. CP 531-32. This decision was promptly appealed. CP 532.

5. <u>Mr. Long is Granted Partial Summary Judgment in *Tribe v. Long*.</u>

Both the lawsuit initiated by the Tribe and the administrative action initiated by the SGC were litigated throughout 2016. CP 532. In the King County Superior Court action, Judge Palmer Robinson awarded partial summary judgment in Mr. Long's favor on July 5, 2016 in the amount of \$85,674.44, plus an additional undetermined amount in attorneys' fees and costs, totaling approximately \$200,000.00. *Id*.

6. The Snoqualmie Tribal Court Overturns SGC Action as Arbitrary and Capricious.

In the SGC licensing action, meanwhile, the Snoqualmie Tribal Court ruled that the SGC's license revocation was "arbitrary and capricious" and remanded the matter to the SGC for either dismissal or renewed action. *Id.* The SGC subsequently re-revoked Mr. Long's gaming license, a decision which was, in turn, re-appealed. CP 283, 276.

7. <u>Mediation in *Tribe v. Long.*</u>

On January 4, 2017, the Tribe and Mr. Long engaged in mandatory mediation that resulted in a settlement agreement. *Id.* The parties agreed to a "complete general release and discharge of any and all claims" held by the Tribe "or entities or agencies":

2. Effective upon execution of this Agreement, the Parties, on behalf of themselves, and all persons, spouses, entities or agencies claiming by, through or under them, and their heirs, successors, administrators, trustees and assigns, hereby knowingly and voluntarily unequivocally, irrevocably and absolutely grant and provide to the other Party to the full extent permitted by law, a full and complete general release and discharge of any and all claims, known and unknown, asserted and unasserted, that any Party may have against any other Party as of the date of execution of this Agreement, including but not limited to any and all claims, actions, causes of action, demands, rights, damages, costs, and expenses whatsoever which any Party may have had, may now have, may claim to have, or may hereafter have or claim to have at any time before the date of this Agreement including but not limited to all claims, known and unknown, relating to the subject matter of, or arising out of, the Litigation. The Parties each warrant and

CP 553-54 (emphasis added).

In addition to specifying that the broad release was on behalf of the "Tribe" and its "entities or agencies," the Settlement Agreement included an express waiver of sovereign immunity for resolution of any and all disputes arising under the Settlement Agreement. CP 554.

11. This Agreement shall be construed, enforced, and interpreted in accordance with the substantive law of the State of Washington. Any dispute arising out of, or related to, this Agreement shall be brought in Washington State Superior Court, King County, and the Parties hereby irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the Court to resolve any dispute arising under this Agreement and waive any right to challenge the jurisdiction of said Court or to alter or change venue. The Tribe hereby expressly and unequivocally waives any and all claim(s) of sovereign immunity for purposes of either Party seeking relief in Washington State Superior Court, King County, as outlined in this paragraph, for purposes of resolving any dispute arising under this Agreement.

As indicated here, the waiver was on behalf of the "Tribe," is unlimited, and "expressly and unequivocally" made. *Id.* (emphasis added).

B. <u>Procedural Background – Long v. Snoqualmie Gaming</u> <u>Commission</u>

1. <u>The Superior Court Stays Discovery and Grants SGC's Motion to Dismiss.</u>

The Settlement Agreement was presented to the SGC for purposes of dismissing the administrative licensing action. CP 533. The SGC

refused. *Id.* Consequently, Mr. Long brought the below action on January 26, 2017 in King County Superior Court against the SGC to enforce the unambiguous terms of the Settlement Agreement entered into with the Tribe and, by necessary extension, the SGC. *See Long v. Snoqualmie Gaming Commission*, King County Case No. 17-2—01853-8 SEA. The Complaint was accompanied by discovery requests exploring the controlling relationship between the Council and the SGC. CP 402, 413.

The SGC brought a Motion to Dismiss based on sovereign immunity. CP 103. Soon thereafter, the SGC filed a Motion for Protective Order to stay discovery pending resolution of the Motion to Dismiss. The trial court granted the Motion for Protective Order on March 10, 2017. CP 493. Consequently, no discovery was ever conducted.

On April 17, 2017, the trial court granted the SGC's Motion to Dismiss. CP 753. The trial court's reasoning was almost entirely unexplained, with the court noting only that it was based on "the briefing and argument presented" and that alternatively, if the SGC was a party to the Settlement Agreement, then the Settlement Agreement released Mr. Long's gaming license claim. *Id.* Mr. Long appealed.

2. The Court of Appeals Decision.

On February 25, 2019, Division I of the Court of Appeals handed

down its published decision, which is attached as Exhibit A. Stating that "[SGC] has sovereign immunity and did not waive it," the Court of Appeals affirmed the Superior Court. Court of Appeals Decision, p.1. The Court of Appeals focused on the ostensibly independent functions of the SGC, and STTGA language providing the SGC with "sovereign immunity from suit absent express consent from the Tribal Council." *Id.* at 2, quoting STTGA 7.02. The Court of Appeals held that this language requires, *inter alia*, the SGC's "immunity [to] be analyzed separately from any waiver of immunity by the Tribe." Court of Appeals Decision, p.14.

V. ARGUMENT

Two primary questions are presented in this case. Both are informed by common sense. The first is whether a waiver of sovereign immunity by the "Tribe" applies to a governmental subentity of that same "Tribe," particularly where the subentity possesses coextensive sovereign immunity with the Tribe, and is unable to waive its own sovereign immunity. The second is whether Mr. Long's constitutional right to discovery in this matter may be blocked by untested and historically inaccurate claims of "independence" by that same subentity.

RAP 13.4(b) provides that a petition for review will be granted by the Washington Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or

- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution or the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Multiple bases are met here. As indicated further below, the decision of the Court of Appeals contravenes *Wright v. Colville Tribal Enterprise*Corp., 159 Wn.2d 108, 147 P.3d 1275 (2006), creates an unworkable analytical approach to application of waivers of sovereign immunity to tribal governmental subentities, and results in a significant expansion of the doctrine of sovereign immunity. As such, accepting review provides a much-needed opportunity to clarify the analysis for applying waivers of sovereign immunity to tribal governmental subentities.

Additionally, accepting review promotes the substantial public interest in reinforcing certainty for businesses and individuals engaged in commercial transactions with tribes by ensuring that unequivocal waivers of sovereign immunity will be given full effect. This interest is especially pronounced in light of the thriving tribal gaming industry in Washington.¹

¹ Tribal gaming in Washington generated \$3.3 billion in revenue in 2018. *See* Washington State Gambling Commission, 2018 Net Gambling Receipts Report, https://www.wsgc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/reports-publications/net-receipts/FY%202018%20Net%20Comparison%20vF12-21.pdf (last accessed May 9, 2019). Additionally tribal Gaming employs more than 33,000 Washington taxpayers, and generated \$1.2 billion in tax revenue in Washington in 2017. *See* Nathan Associates analysis; Alan Meister, *Casino City's Indian Gaming Industry Report*, 2017 Edition, Newton: Casino City Press (2017).

Finally, accepting review also vindicates Mr. Long's significant interests in rights of access to the courts and discovery when confronted with an imbalanced jurisdictional discovery burden. Indeed, Mr. Long's jurisdictional discovery quandary is far more egregious than the dissenters found necessitated remand in *Wright*, and meets the criteria for remand identified by Justices Madsen and Fairhurst in their *Wright* concurrence. *Id.*, at 121-22. This Petition for Review should be granted.

A. This Court Should Decide Whether an Express and Unambiguous Waiver of Sovereign Immunity by a Tribe is Applicable to a Governmental Subentity of that Tribe.

The scope of tribal sovereign immunity is an issue of federal law. *Kiowa Tribe of Oklahoma v. Manufacturing Technologies, Inc.*, 523 U.S. 751, 753, 118 S.Ct. 1700, 140 L.Ed.2d 981 (1998). Under federal law, tribal sovereign immunity protects recognized tribes from suit absent explicit and "unequivocal" waiver or abrogation. *Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez*, 436 U.S. 49, 59, 98 S. Ct. 1670, 56 L.Ed. 2d. 106 (1978).

In *Wright*, this Court recognized that sovereign immunity extends to "tribal agencies and instrumentalities acting as extensions of tribal government." *Wright*, 159 Wn.2d at 112, 147 P.3d 1275 (2006), see also N. Sea Prods., Ltd. v. Clipper Seafoods Co., 92 Wn.2d 236, 240, 595 P.2d 938 (1979) (holding a tribal corporation and subsidiary were "subordinate divisions" of the tribe protected by sovereign immunity). Then, a deeply

divided Court in *Wright* found that sovereign immunity extended to tribal corporations that were separately incorporated under tribal law, and denied remand for further fact finding to ascertain facts related to the waiver of sovereign immunity. Here, Mr. Long's case addresses a related issue: application of a waiver of sovereign immunity to tribal governmental subentities. As a result, this case is related to *Wright*, and the Court should take the opportunity to clarify how a waiver of sovereign immunity by a tribe applies to governmental subentities of that tribe. The Court should do so for four reasons.

1. There Is Little Case Law on This Subject.

There is little case law addressing the relationship between a tribe and a tribal governmental subentity for purposes of waiving sovereign immunity. What little case law exists suggests that no distinction should be made between a tribe and its governmental subentities. In *Lewis v*. *Clarke*, for example, the U.S. Supreme Court observed that "an arm or instrumentality of the State generally enjoys the same immunity as the sovereign itself." *Lewis v. Clarke*, ____ U.S. ____, 137 S.Ct. 1285, 1290, 197 L.Ed. 631 (2017). In Washington, *Wright* provides substantial analysis, but, as noted above, *Wright* pertained to separately incorporated tribal corporate entities. That said, the *Wright* majority approvingly cited *Ninigret Dev. Corp. v. Narragansett Indian Wetuomuck Hous. Authority*,

207 F.3d 21 (1st Cir. 2000) for the proposition that "[t]he protection of tribal sovereign immunity also protects tribal agencies and instrumentalities as extensions of tribal government." *Wright*, 159 Wn.2d at 112-13. *Ninigret* makes clear that it saw no distinction between a tribe and its governmental subentities for purposes of analyzing sovereign immunity:

The Authority, as an arm of the Tribe, enjoys the full extent of the Tribe's sovereign immunity. *Therefore, we shall not distinguish between the Tribe and the Authority in discussing concepts such as tribal immunity and tribal exhaustion.*

Ninigret Dev. Corp., 207 F.3d at 29 (internal citations omitted) (emphasis added). Yet, despite *Ninigret's* view that no distinction is necessary, and despite recognizing that the SGC's sovereign immunity is coextensive with the Tribe's, the Court of Appeals extensively distinguished the Tribe and SGC when interpreting the Settlement Agreement. Court of Appeals Decision, p.11-15. This is contrary to available case law.

2. The Court of Appeals Decision Contravenes *Wright*.

The Court of Appeals decision is in contravention of *Wright*. In *Wright*, one of the factors considered by the majority as to whether sovereign immunity applied to the tribal corporate entities was whether tribal law permitted the corporate entity to waive its own sovereign

immunity.² Wright, Wn.2d at 115. Here, although the Court of Appeals acknowledged that the SGC's and Tribe's sovereign immunity was coextensive (*See* Court of Appeals Decision, p.11-15), and although the Court of Appeals acknowledged that the Tribe's Constitution prohibits the SGC from waiving its own sovereign immunity (*Id.*, at 9-10, n.30), it failed to properly consider and apply these factors in light of Wright.

Additionally, the *Wright* majority and concurrence were concerned about the financial implications of denying sovereign immunity to tribal governmental corporations. *Wright*, 159 Wn.2d at113 ("And tribal sovereign immunity also protects certain tribal business enterprises because 'an action against a tribal enterprise is, in essence, an action against the tribe itself."); *See also Id.*, at 124 ("Any liability imposed on the corporations could still affect the tribe's finances.") (J. Madsen concurring). Here, however, application of the waiver of sovereign immunity found in the Settlement Agreement has no impact on the Tribe's finances, but merely permits Mr. Long to proceed in his lawsuit seeking dismissal of the SGC's licensing action. Again, the Court of Appeals failed to properly consider and apply *Wright*.

-

² Another factor was whether the tribe's law itself waived the sovereign immunity of the tribal corporations at issue. *Id.* In this case, however, the waiver of sovereign immunity is found in the Settlement Agreement, duly ratified by the Council.

3. The Court of Appeals Decision Is Unworkable.

The Court of Appeals' analytical framework is wholly unworkable. The Court of Appeals constructed an impractical, function and relationbased analysis that focuses on the SGC's self-proclaimed, self-serving, and historically inaccurate claims of "independence" from the Tribe to justify requiring more specificity in the Settlement Agreement's waiver of sovereign immunity to apply it to the SGC. See Court of Appeals Decision, p.11 ("The Commission's exclusive authority over gaming licenses and its relationship to the Tribe and the Washington State Gambling Commission show that any claimed waiver of its sovereign immunity must be analyzed independently of the Tribe's waiver.") Indeed, the Court of Appeals explicitly hinges the analysis on the perceived function of the SGC and relationship with outside entities: "A contrary view [that the Tribe's waiver of its own sovereign immunity waives the SGC's sovereign immunity] would frustrate the independence of the Commission contemplated by the STTGA and the compact between the State of Washington and the Tribe." Court of Appeals Decision, p.15.

This function and relation-based approach for applying a waiver of sovereign immunity to a tribal governmental subentity is unsupported by Washington case law. If the Court of Appeals' analysis is correct, any individual or entity negotiating a contractual waiver of sovereign

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