FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
6/20/2019 2:22 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 97180-3 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 77007-1-I IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

WENDELL LONG, an individual,

Appellant,

v.

SNOQUALMIE GAMING COMMISSION, a political subdivision of the Snoqualmie Indian Tribe,

Respondent.

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Edmund Clay Goodman, WSBA # 37347 HOBBS, STRAUS, DEAN & WALKER, LLP 516 SE Morrison Street, Suite 1200 Portland, OR 97214 (503) 242-1745 egoodman@hobbsstraus.com

Attorney for Respondent, Snoqualmie Gaming Commission

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

SNOOUALMIE GAMING COMMISSION - COMMISSION HEARING REGULATIONS

hearing; or

- (b) If the Commission sets over a hearing pursuant to these Regulations, and the party appears at the set over hearing.
- (C) Failure to Notify Commission; Final Decision and Order by Default. If a party fails to notify the Commission that the party will attend the hearing in accordance with these Regulations, and the party fails to attend the hearing, the Commission may enter a final decision and order by default.

Section 2.7 Evidence

- (A) Neither the common law nor any statutory rules of evidence shall apply in Commission hearings under these Regulations; rather, subject to the provisions below, any evidence may be received which is relevant and possesses probative value.
- (B) Documentary Evidence and Witness Lists Limitation
 - (1) The Commission will compile all documentary evidence the Commission intends to use or reference at the hearing, including a list of any witnesses the Commission may call to present evidence or testimony. The Commission must submit this evidence and witness list to the licensee or party subject to a hearing no less than **two weeks** prior to the hearing.
 - (2) The licensee or party subject to a hearing must, in turn, submit its documentary evidence it intends to use or reference at the hearing, including a witness list, to the Commission not less than **one week** prior to the hearing.
 - (a) Example: If a hearing is scheduled for a Tuesday, the licensee or party must ensure it submits its evidence and list to the Commission by the Tuesday one week prior. If the one-week deadline falls on a holiday, the evidence must be submitted by the business day prior to the holiday.
 - (3) Limitation If the licensee or the party subject to a hearing does not submit documentary evidence and a witness list by the deadline above, the evidence will not be considered at the hearing. The Commission will not accept evidence after the one-week deadline.
 - (4) Notwithstanding Section 2.3 (Service of Notice) above, the parties may exchange documentary evidence and witness lists electronically provided that the Commission and the party agree to such transmittal prior to the due dates in this section.

- (C) The Commission may exclude evidence that is irrelevant, immaterial or unduly repetitious, or untimely presented, upon its own determination or upon objection made by a party. Any objection to any testimony or item offered as evidence must be made at the time it is offered into evidence. If an objection is made to any testimony or other item offered as evidence, the Commission may provisionally allow that testimony or item in evidence and determine at a later point whether to consider it, or the Commission may decide upon the objection at the point in time when the objection is made. The Commission may, at its discretion, go into Executive Session to discuss among the Commissioners whether or not to sustain the objection.
- (D) The Commission may take official notice of (i) any fact that could be judicially noticed in the Tribal Court; (ii) the record of other proceedings before the Commission; (iii) technical or scientific matters within the Commission's specialized knowledge; and (iv) codes or standards that have been adopted by an agency of the United States, the Tribe or a state, or by a nationally recognized organization or association.

Section 2.8 Final Decision and Order

- (A) Final decision and order by default
 - (1) The Commission may issue a final decision and order by default:
 - (a) When the Commission gives the party notice of hearing pursuant to these Regulations, and the party fails to notify the Commission that the party plans to attend the hearing;
 - (b) When a party notifies the Commission that the party plans to attend the hearing but subsequently withdraws that notice;
 - (c) When a party notifies the Commission that they plan to attend the hearing and the party fails to appear at the hearing; or
 - (d) When the Commission sets over a hearing on a party's motion and the party fails to appear at the set over hearing.
 - (2) If the party fails to appear at the hearing and, before issuing a final decision and order by default, the Commission finds that the failure of the party to appear was caused by circumstances beyond the party's reasonable control, the Commission may choose not issue a final decision and order by default, but instead schedule a new hearing.

- (3) The Commission may issue a final decision and order by default that is adverse to a party only after evidence is introduced into the record to support such decision and order. The Commission must find that the record, including all materials submitted by the party, contains evidence that persuades the Commission of the existence of facts necessary to support the decision and order.
- (4) The Commission shall render a final decision and order by default within **twenty** (20) business days of the hearing unless the Commission determines there is good cause to extend this period.
- (5) A final decision and order by default shall include:
 - (a) The authority under which the Commission enters a decision and order by default;
 - (b) Findings of fact—A finding must be made on each fact necessary to reach the conclusions of law on which the final decision and order is based;
 - (c) Conclusion(s) of law—applications of the controlling law to the facts found and the legal results arising therefrom;
 - (d) Decision and order—the decision of the Commission and action taken by the Commission as a result of the facts found and the legal conclusions arising therefrom;
 - (e) The effective date of the decision and order;
 - (f) A statement that the party may request, by a written request to the Commission, that the final decision and order by default be set aside within ten (10) business days of receiving the final decision and order by default, but that a final decision and order by default may only be set aside by the Commission if the cause for failure to appear at the hearing was beyond the reasonable control of the party; and
 - (g) A citation to the provision of these regulations that authorize an appeal to Tribal Court.
- (6) The Commission shall cause copies of the final decision and order by default to be delivered to each party.
- (B) In hearings where the party properly notified the Commission and appeared at the hearing, the following apply for a decision and order:

- (1) The Commission, at its sole discretion, may allow the parties a designated amount of time after conclusion of the hearing for the submission of proposed findings or other arguments or motions.
- (2) The Commission shall render a final decision and order in writing within **twenty** (20) business days of the hearing unless the Commission determines there is good cause to extend this period.
- (3) A final decision and order shall include:
 - (a) Findings of fact those matters that are either agreed as fact or that, when disputed, are determined by the Commission, on evidence, to be facts over contentions to the contrary. A finding must be made on each fact necessary to reach the conclusions of law on which the final decision and order is based:
 - (b) Conclusion(s) of law—applications of the controlling law to the facts found and the legal results arising therefrom;
 - (c) Decision and order—the decision of the Commission and action taken by the Commission as a result of the facts found and the legal conclusions arising therefrom;
 - (d) The effective date of the decision and order; and
 - (e) A citation of the provision of these regulations that authorize an appeal to Tribal Court.
- (4) The Commission shall cause copies of the final decision and order to be delivered to each party.

Section 2.9 Commission Record

The Commission shall maintain an official record of each hearing. The Commission Record shall be confidential, and access to the Commission Records will be limited, as appropriate, by the Commission. The record shall consist of the following:

- (A) notices of all proceedings;
- (B) any briefs or other document setting forth the parties' positions;
- (C) evidence received or considered;
- (D) a statement of any matters officially noticed;

- (E) proposed findings;
- (F) the recording of the hearing, together with any transcript of all or part of the hearing considered for the final decision;
- (G) the final decision.

Section 2.10 Appeals

The Commission hereby authorizes an express and limited waiver of its immunity from suit for the sole purpose of an appeal to the Snoqualmie Tribal Court only from a final decision to revoke a tribal gaming license reached pursuant to these Regulations, which waiver is subject further to the limitations set out in this Section 2.10. This limited waiver of immunity for the purposes of allowing appeals of final revocation decisions to the Tribal Court shall be construed narrowly, and any appeal outside the scope of this Section 2.10 shall not be deemed to be within the scope of this limited waiver.

(A) Parameters of Appeal

- (1) Only a Commission decision revoking a tribal gaming license may be appealed.
- (2) Only a final Commission decision may be appealed. There shall be no interlocutory appeals.
- (3) A final Commission decision may only be appealed to the Snoqualmie Tribal Court.
- (4) The evidentiary record on appeal shall be limited to the Commission Record of the appealed decision, as described in Section 2.9.
- (5) The Commission's limited waiver of sovereign immunity to the Tribal Court is further conditioned on the Tribal Court conducting the appeal hearing confidentially, and keeping confidential the evidence considered in the appeal and any records of the appeal hearing proceedings. The Tribal Court shall maintain confidential records, which shall not be open to any but the following individuals, except as may be ordered by Resolution of the Commission:
 - a. Members of the Commission in their official capacity.
 - b. The Commission Executive Director.
 - c. The Commission's legal representative.
 - d. The appealing party and his or her legal representative.
 - e. Court personnel.

All these individuals must maintain the confidentiality of the records, except on written mutual agreement between the Commission and the appealing party. In applying this provision, the Tribal Court may apply its practices under Section 9 of the Tribal Indian Child Welfare Code (Tribal Council Act 13.2).

- (6) The waiver for review by the Snoqualmie Tribal Court is limited to a consideration of whether the final Commission decision was arbitrary and capricious, or contains an error of law. This limited waiver does not extend to or allow for any award of damages or attorneys' fee against the Commission.
- (7) The appealing party is responsible for his or her own costs, including attorney's fees, on appeal.

(B) Appeal Procedure

(1) An appealing party must first provide written notice to the Commission within **five** (5) **business days** after a final decision that the party will appeal the decision to Tribal Court. The written notice must set out the reasons for the appeal. The first business day following the date of the final decision shall count as the first day of this period. If a party fails to provide notice to the Commission within this period, he or she waives the appeal to Tribal Court and the Commission's limited waiver for such appeal is ineffective, and the final decision shall stand.

(2) Form and Timing of Appeal

- (a) The appeal shall be a concise and clear statement of the grounds for the appeal, and may be no longer than five (5) pages.
- (b) The appeal shall be submitted to the Snoqualmie Tribal Court no later than **ten** (10) **business days** after the written notice to the Commission has been provided. If a party fails to submit the appeal to the Tribal Court within this period, he or she waives the appeal to Tribal Court and the Commission's limited waiver for such appeal is ineffective, and the final decision shall stand.
- (c) A true copy of the appeal shall be served on the Commission and any other party as soon as practicable after its filing, but in no case more than **five** (5) **business days** from its filing. The appealing party must file with the Tribal Court a proof

SNOQUALMIE GAMING COMMISSION – COMMISSION HEARING REGULATIONS

- of service that a copy of appeal has been properly served.
- (d) The appeal shall contain a copy of the final decision as an attachment. No other attachments or exhibits may be submitted. The Commission will provide the Snoqualmie Tribal Court with the Commission Record as described in Section 2.9 upon receipt of service of the appeal.
- (C) The decision of the Snoqualmie Tribal Court on the appeal is final; this limited waiver does not extend to any further appeal beyond the Tribal Court.
- (D) This limited waiver of sovereign immunity for purposes of appeal is further limited to decisions by the Tribal Court that would either affirm the Commission's decision or that remand to the Commission for further proceedings. There is no waiver of the Commission's immunity to any claims for any other kind of relief, including but not limited to damages, injunctive relief, attorney fees, or any other relief.
- (E) The express, limited waiver of sovereign immunity shall only apply to the appeal at hand. The Commission explicitly does not waive its immunity from suit from matters collateral to the appealed decision, matters arising from the same set of facts or controversy as the appealed decision, or matters beyond the revocation of a gaming license.

F. Order and Judgment, Long v. Snoqualmie Gaming Commission, Snoqualmie Tribal Court No. SNO-CV-0223-2016 (March 22, 2016)

1	Snoqualmie Tribal Court	Aun Darcia					
2	PO Box 969	03-03-16 A11:59 RCVD					
3	8150 Railroad Ave. #B Snoqualmie, WA 98065						
4	Ph 425-898-2567 Fax 425-888-2584						
5							
6							
7	IN THE SNOQUALMIE TRIBAL COURT FOR THE SNOQUALMIE INDIAN TRIBE						
8	CNICOTIAL MIE WARLINGTON						
9							
10	WENDELL LONG,) NO. SNO-CV-0223-2016					
11	Petitioner,	ORDER AND JUDGMENT					
12) GRANTING RESPONDENT'S) MOTION TO DISMISS AND					
13	v.) DISMISSING THE CASE					
14	SNOQUALMIE GAMING COMMISSION,	PROPOSEDJ &					
15	Respondent.)					
16							
17	This matter came before the Snoqualmie T	Fribal Court on March 3, 2016, on a hearing on					
18							
19	Respondent's Motion to Dismiss and Petitioner's	Motion for Temporary Restraining Order,					
20	Injunctive Relief, and More Definite Statement.	Having considered the Respondent's Motion to					
21	Dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, an	d all other relevant pleadings, the Court makes the					
22	following findings:						
23							
24	1. The Snoqualmie Gaming Commission	filed a Motion to Dismiss asserting that the Court					
25	lacked subject matter jurisdiction over						
26	ORDER AND JUDGMENT GRANTING RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS	1					
27	AND DISMISSING THE CASE [PROPOSED]						
28							

1	L.	The Stoquazine Gaining Commission has severeign minutinity from sure, unless such
2		immunity is waived by the Snoqualmie Tribal Council.
3	3.	The Court finds no waiver by the Snoqualmie Tribal Council of the Snoqualmie Gaming
4		Commission's sovereign immunity for this case.
5	4.	The Court finds that it lacks subject matter jurisdiction to hear Petitioner's case and that
6		the case must be dismissed.
7		the case must be dismissed.
8	5.	The Court therefore cannot consider Petitioner's Motion for Temporary Restraining
9		Order, Injunctive Relief, and More Definite Statement, or any other request for relief by
10		Petitioner.
11	IT	IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Respondent's Motion
12		s is GRANTED, and the case is DISMISSED.
13		22 day of Much, 20/6.
14	Dated this	day of
15		Som Colo
16		Judge Leona Colegrove, Snoqualmie Tribal Court
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
		AND JUDGMENT GRANTING 2
26		DENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS MISSING THE CASE [PROPOSED]
27		one and a see franchista and a
28		

1	Respectfully submitted,	_
2	Elmul C. Hodon by SR	()
3	Edmund C. Goodman	
4	Counsel for Snoqualmie Gaming Commission Hobbs Straus, Dean & Walker, LLP	
5	806 SW Broadway, Suite 900 Portland, OR 97205	
6	(503) 242-1745	
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26	ORDER AND JUDGMENT GRANTING RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS	3
27	AND DISMISSING THE CASE [PROPOSED]	
28		

G. <u>Tribal-State Compact for Class III Gaming between the Snoqualmie Indian Tribe and the State of Washington (Feb. 11, 2002) (as amended June 14, 2008) §§ V, VI</u>

V - LICENSING AND CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES

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